## BOROUGH OF HASBROUCK HEIGHTS

### MINUTES

### July 26, 2011

A Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the Borough of Hasbrouck Heights was held on Tuesday, July 26, 2011 at 8:05 p.m. at Borough Hall, 320 Boulevard, Hasbrouck Heights, New Jersey.

Borough Clerk Rose Marie Sees stated that the meeting complied with the Sunshine Law, adequate notice of this meeting having been made to all members of the Council by personal service on January 3, 2011 and transmitted to The Observer, The Record and The Herald News on January 3, 2011.

ROLL CALL: Present:	Mayor Rose Heck, Councilman Justin A. DiPisa, Councilwoman Sonya Buckman, Councilman David Gonzalez, Councilman John Dingertopadre, Councilman Russell A. Lipari
Absent:	Councilwoman Pamela J. Link

**SALUTE TO THE FLAG AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**: Mayor Heck led in the Salute to the Flag and Pledge of Allegiance.

**INVOCATION**: Councilwoman Buckman gave the Invocation as follows:

"We Gather. We gather together here today intent on doing good work. We seek to represent fairly and well those who have given us this task. May our efforts be blessed with insight, guided by understanding and wisdom. We seek to serve with respect for all. May our personal faith give us strength to act honestly and well in all matters before us. Amen"

COMMUNICATIONS:	1) Thank you from Matthew Wipper, recipient of Mary B. Quigg Scholarship
	2) Thank you from Crystal Wrede, recipient of Mary B. Quigg Scholarship
	3) United Water New Jersey Files Rate Request with NJBPU
COMMUNICATIONS (co	<ol> <li>Letter from B.C. Dept. Of Public Works advising of Boulevard Resurfacing</li> <li>Dont'd):</li> </ol>

Items #3 and #4 were requested to be read into the record (Copies attached). Mayor Heck asked for a motion to approve the correspondence which was made by Councilman Gonzalez, seconded by Councilman Lipari and unanimously carried.

### PETITIONS: None

### **APPROVAL OF MINUTES:**

(April 26, 2011 Closed Session, June 28, 2011 Regular Meeting, June 28, 2011 Closed Session, July 12, 2011 Regular Meeting, July 12, 2011 Work Session )

On a motion by Councilman DiPisa, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, with Councilwoman Buckman abstaining from the Minutes of July 12, 2011, and otherwise unanimously carried, the foregoing Minutes were approved.

### BILLS:

WHEREAS, claims and accounts amounting to \$391,699.76 specified in the schedule hereto annexed, have been examined and approved by the Finance Commissioner, or his Deputy; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that funds are available in the accounts listed for payment of the claims;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the claims be paid and checks be issued on the funds and accounts indicated on the attached schedule.

Signed Pamela J. Link Commissioner of Finance

On a motion by Councilman DiPisa, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried, the foregoing Resolution was adopted.

### **REPORTS:**

**POLICE AND LAND USE:** Under Police, Commissioner DiPisa reported the Department participated in MDA's Annual Lock Up on June 28. The 12<sup>th</sup> Annual Jr. Police Academy held June 27-July 1 had the largest class ever. The recruits participated in many activities including self defense, motor vehicle stops, team building and more. They took trips to Bergen County Police Academy and a tour of the Bergen County Jail. Guest instructors were from the FBI, NJSP, B.C. Sheriff's Dept., Lyndhurst SWAT Team along with H.H. Teacher Mike Stillman, Det. Sgt. Joe Rinke and Det. Mike **POLICE AND LAND USE (cont'd):** Colaneri. A new evidence record keeping system

was purchased using confiscated funds. The state of the art system will save officers time tracking and ensuring proper handling and tracking of all evidence from the scene to the lab and court room. It is compatible with the Bergen County Prosecutor and NJ State Police Lab. Det. Colaneri did the research and oversaw the installation of the system. He read two letters, one from the Shaw Family thanking the Police and EMT for their responses to 94 Wood Street to assist their Dad and another from B.C. Sheriff Michael Saudino for participation in the "Chief for a Day" celebration. Under Violations, he reported under parking violations for the month of July in 2011 were 2,125, in 2010 there were 1,702. Moving violations in 2011 were 814, and in 2010 were 716, with total violations in 2010 of 2,418 to 2,939 in 2011.

**FINANCE, SOCIAL SERVICES & PUBLIC FACILITIES:** Under Finance, Deputy Commissioner DiPisa reported the Current Fund cash balance at June 30 was \$502,337.49 and at May 31st was \$3,077,289.16 which represents a decrease of \$2,574,951.67. The entire balance was invested and earning approximately 0.35%. Cash receipts for the month of June totaled \$324,894.54 of which \$138,320.62 was for Current Taxes, \$20,848.12 was Delinquent Taxes and \$165,725.80 was Miscellaneous Revenues. Cash disbursements for the month of June totaled \$2,897,108.45 of which \$1,919,932.75 was for Local School Taxes, \$601,459.80 was for Salaries and \$375,715.90 was for Other Expenses. He continued that estimated tax bills were printed and mailed with a due date of August 1, 2011. The Finance Department received the Certification of Final Tax Rate and is being reviewed. Once all numbers are confirmed final tax bills will be mailed which will reflect the fourth quarter 2011 balance and first and second quarter taxes for 2012.

**PUBLIC FACILITIES:** Under Public Facilities, Deputy Commissioner DiPisa reported the air conditioning systems at several of our buildings, maintenance of the entire system at the Municipal Complex was completed by installing new filters and cleaning of the compressors cooling foils. Fan belts were also replaced where needed throughout the system as well. At Police Headquarters, a new compressor unit was installed that controls the area of the Police Desk. The new compressor was not in stock and took two days until it was available. During this time, a portable A/C unit was placed at the desk to keep our 911 system from overheating until the repair was completed. A malfunction of the fire alarm system was detected at Borough Hall. The cause of the malfunction was a faulty wire connection in the terminal control box. The repair was completed in a timely fashion. The Senior Picnic was held at the Senior Center on Thursday, July 14. The DPW assisted Ro Sees, Borough Clerk, who organized the event, with the set up of tables, chairs, an outdoor grill, and a canopy. The schedule of meetings was as follows: Community Room – 7, Caucus Room – 7, Council Chambers – 4 and Senior Center – 3.

**SOCIAL SERVICES:** Under Social Services, Deputy Commissioner DiPisa reported the Food Pantry is at its lowest ever! As you have been reading about most Food Pantries **SOCIAL SERVICES (cont'd):** in our area, the Hasbrouck Heights Food Pantry is also

in desperate need of supplies. The shelves are almost empty save for some canned vegetables and lots of pasta. Items to be donated could be any grocery items including but not limited to canned soups and meats, tuna fish, cereals, sauces and gravies, coffee, tea, sugar, flour, powdered milk, toiletries, paper products and cleaning products. Grocerv store gift cards in denominations of \$5 or \$10 are also gladly accepted. Everyone has been so generous in the past, which is very much appreciated. Donations may be dropped off at the Borough Clerk's office from 8 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Monday through Friday. From June 27 through July 25, there were 104 visitors to the Food Pantry who received food and a food store gift card when available. We would like to especially thank the following for their wonderful generosity in providing monetary donations, groceries or gift cards: Mrs. Caputo, Mr. Kinsley, Arlene Carreau, Martha Pertuz, Mr. Mion, the First Reformed Church, Kathy Van Jura, Tribeca Ovens and The Bread Man, Maria Wojchechowski, St. Joseph's Church in Lodi, Methodist Church and Corpus Christi Brown Bag Sunday. The food pantry is open on Monday mornings from 9am-11am for Hasbrouck Heights residents in need. Anyone in need can register by calling Rob Brady at (201) 288-4143. Thank you to the generous volunteers who help stock and supervise the food pantry.

**RECREATION & PARKS:** Under Parks, Commissioner Buckman reported the United Water Company had notified the Borough that water meters were scheduled to be replaced at Woodland Park. The DPW had scheduled a date to meet with the technician at the park to discover that one of the meters had long been disconnected and buried over and the other meter linked to a drinking fountain was removed some years back from the playground area. Both the water company and the Borough Clerk's office were notified and the matter is being looked into. At Woodland Park, Recreation Camp is still going on and the DPW removes trash and cleans the bathrooms facilities every day. Michael Kronyak, Borough Administrator, along with Bill Spindler, DPW Superintendent, and Ken Job, Borough Engineer, met several times at the Firemen's Memorial to discuss the improvements to the park. One of the latest communications, regarding the construction of the area, between Spindler and Job was with United Water Company. The installation of a vault box was requested by the DPW for irrigation valves to a new sprinkler system. Ken Job had to provide certain specs to the water company to complete the order.

Under Recreation, Commissioner Buckman reported Softball UGALS 10 and under continue to do well in the playoffs against Ridgefield. UGALS 12 and under are the top seed in their division playoffs and consequently have field advantage in their playoffs with Wood-Ridge tomorrow. They were wished well. Summer Recreation Program is winding down. The last few trips are Liberty Science Center, Medieval Times and the Ice House in Hackensack with the last day of the program Aug. 5. Town Day is scheduled at Woodland Park for Saturday, Sept. 24 with a raindate of Oct. 1. Organizations are invited to call Rob Brady or e-mail him at <u>hhrec@aol.com</u> for a table. As Liaison to the Library, Director Mimi Hui and her staff have planned a summer **RECREATION AND PARKS (cont'd):** extravaganza entitled "Grand World Tour" for

Aug. 5 from 7 p.m. to 1 a.m. with karoake singing, Caribbean beauty makeovers, story tellers, game shows, Movies "Rio" and Rango", African drummers and Bollywood dancers plus a sampling of various cultural foods.

STREETS, SANITATION & TRANSPORTATION: As Commissioner, Councilman Gonzalez reported During this past month, several repairs were performed at the Franklin Avenue Sanitary Sewer Pump Station. While performing a routine inspection of that facility, the pump room was found to be flooded with four feet of water. Our Jet-Vac vehicle along with a portable pump was dispatched immediately to pump out the water. Once this was accomplished, it was discovered that one of the three pumps had seized up and broke the seal to the underlying pipe along with the drive shafts. The main valve was shut off to stop the flooding and then the repairs could begin to take place. The entire pump was removed and had to be totally rebuilt along with new universal joints and drive shafts. During the period of rebuilding, the facility operated on two pumps at which time another pump began to indicate that the bearing in that pump were torn-up and that pump was also taken out and rebuilt. The Pump Station is now back in full operation with all three pumps functioning. However, there are still some electrical repairs that have to be addressed. On June 29 the Police Department reported to the DPW water flowing out of a manhole on Rt.17 South in the area of Houlihans. DPW call men were dispatched to investigate the matter. They found a blockage in the sanitary sewer line that runs under the highway. All safety equipment and assistance from the Police Department was used to close off two lanes of traffic. The blockage was cleared from the system. The DPW provided cones and barricades to block off streets during the fireworks display held at Depken Field. After the event, they cleaned all debris/ash from the Little League Field area that was left behind from the fireworks. Backpacks and walk-behind blowers were used as well as the street sweeper. As Environmental liaison, he reported the Satellite container will be in the municipal lot on Saturday, Aug. From 7 a.m. to 12 noon.

FIRE: Under Fire, Commissioner Dingertopadre said he had not received a report.

HEALTH: Under Health, Commissioner Lipari reported on the following:

**Senior Flu Shot Program:** The Health Department in conjunction with the Mid-Bergen Regional Health Commission is offering adult influenza vaccine injections to residents over 65 years of age on Sept. 29, 2011 from 10 a.m. to 12 noon in the Senior Center. Adults 65 years and older are required to bring their Medicare card (Part B). Residents who are covered by Managed Care Plans (HMO) are requested to see their private physicians for the vaccine. Adults under 65 and/or those who do not have a Medicare Part B Card will be charged a fee of \$20 for the vaccine. Limited vaccine is available for those under 65 years of age. Advance registration is required and will begin on Thursday, Sept. 15 at 9 a.m. at Borough Hall. Those who pre-register must submit **HEALTH (cont'd):** proof of residency and their Medicare Card (Part B). For more information call Laura French at 201-288-1636.

**Adult Vision Screening:** The Board of Health in conjunction with the Health Awareness Regional Program will be sponsoring free Adult Vision Screening on Tuesday, Aug. 30, 2011 in Borough Hall Senior Center from 1 to 3 p.m. The adult screening includes Visual acuity measurement and Glaucoma.

**Senior Wellness Luncheon:** The Board of Health will be sponsoring their Annual Senior Wellness Luncheon on Thursday, Sept. 22 from 11 a.m. to 2 p.m. Care-One Wellington of Hackensack will be providing the complimentary lunch.

### MAYOR'S REPORT:

June 28, Tuesday: 6:30 pm, I chaired the Zoning Committee meeting attended by Councilmen Justin Di Pisa and David Gonzalez along with Borough Attorney Ralph Chandless and Borough Administrator Michael Kronyak. Several matters of importance were discussed.

8 p.m. I opened the regular Council Meeting.

June 30, Thursday, 7 p.m. I attended the Lions Club Fireworks event and welcomed Bergen County Executive Kathleen Donovan along with the thousands of people in the attendance. I extend my personal thanks to Tom Mason and all the members of his Lions Club committee for a wonderful program and the spectacular Fireworks. They keep getting better and better. It is always impressive to see the Honor Guards with Flags flying and particularly moving to hear the Star Spangled Banner sung so beautifully by Florianna Huen.

July 1, Friday, 1 p.m., I officiated at the Grand Opening of the Sushi Restaurant at Boulevard. Also in attendance were Councilwoman Pam Link and Chamber of Commerce President Ray Vorisek. We wished owners Gina and Patrick good luck and partook of their delicious foods.

<u>7 p.m.</u> I attended the Junior Police Academy Graduation held in the H.H.H.S. Auditorium with Deputy Police Commissioner David Gonzalez. Police Chief Michael Colaneri gave the opening the remarks and commended all the instructors including Juvenile Officer Sgt. Joseph Rinke. We all took turns speaking to and congratulating the 57 graduates.

July 4, 10 a.m. Monday, For the first time the Fourth of July Children's Costume Parade was held at Woodland Park. The weather and the setting were perfect. The children and parents had a wonderful time. I congratulated Event Chairs Dorothy and

# MAYOR'S REPORT (cont'd):

Anthony Bernice along with the Mayor's Celebration Committee Chair Pat Link and the committee volunteers, as well as the judges. Also in attendance were Council Members Pam Link, Sonya Buckman, David Gonzalez and Russell Lipari.

July 7, Friday at 4 p.m., I met with Police Chief Michael Colaneri on a number of local matters that needed our attention. It was a productive meeting.

### July 12, Tuesday Council Meeting

**July 14, Wednesday at noon: 7 a.m.** Attended a wonderful breakfast celebration of the Patel Family's 30<sup>th</sup> Anniversary in business in Lodi. Jai Patel their son is a Pack 17 Eagle Scout who has brought his marketing skills to the Family Business. It was wonderful to see Mr. and Mrs. Patel again along with their daughter, all of whom are working in the Overhead Door Company Inc. located in Lodi with offices now in New York City. I was very impressed with their operation and presentation with a connection to a National Company. The "team" that includes all of their enthusiastic employees, has worked to increase the company business 10% each year for the past 5 years and this year increased it by 17%. I wanted to share this with everyone because it shows that even in this down turned economy some small businesses are growing and becoming very successful.

**12 Noon** –I arrived shortly after Council President Pam Link and had a wonderful time at the Borough Sponsored Senior Citizens Picnic. I had the pleasure of introducing Borough Clerk Rose Marie Sees and we all applauded her in thanks for her hard work in bringing this annual event together. The lunch, desserts and entertainment were enjoyed by all. Council Members came and went throughout the event.

July 19, Monday, 10 a.m. Met with the Mayor's Senior Citizens Committee. In attendance were Borough Clerk Ro Sees, Members Dorothy Petroulis, Ethel Ball, Dolores Jones, Peter Gallo, Madeleine Leddy, John and Dorothy Fitzin, Marilyn de Russy and Archie Mason. I reported on all the Council happenings, including Police Arbitration results, the Reassessment, the recently passed Budget, the work to be done at The Woodland Park Pavilion, and the Program and work being done for the 10<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of 9-11. I asked for questions and suggestions. Archie Mason raised a number of important points and I asked the Borough Clerk to send them to the Police Chief. We had a lot of back and forth questions, answers and suggestion. This is a committee that I consider important to me personally since they are all active members of the community with diversified opinions and experience. One thing they have in common is their love of Hasbrouck Heights. I always thank them for their help and input. MAYOR'S REPORT (cont'd):

Due to the weather, I continued most of my work via e-mail and telephone, stopping in at the Municipal Building when necessary. The hottest week in the year was not one I will soon forget.

July 25, Monday, 6 p.m. Mayor's 9-11 Program Committee met. I thanked Fr. Joseph Pickard who could not be there and Deacon Paul Carris for their wondrful draft suggestions. The Borough Clerk printed out a rough draft so we could review and make program suggestions. Present were Borough Clerk Ro Sees, Borough Administrator Michael Kronyak, Program Committee Members Paul Carris and Fritz Rethage and me. It was a productive meeting and resulted in more details being added to the Program. We must now contact the people we would like to actively participate in the program.

Arrangements are being made to pick up the two 8 ft. beams from Kennedy Airport. D.P.W. Supt. Bill Spindler and his men are setting up a date mutually acceptable to Port Authority Deputy Executive Director Bill Baroni. 9-11 Committee Members Paul Carris and Fritz Rethage will also be there and accompany the WTC beams to Hasbrouck Heights. Borough Administrator Kronyak the Borough Clerk Rose Marie Sees are assisting is the coordination of that event.

<u>On July 11<sup>th</sup> Monday, 18<sup>th</sup>, and 25<sup>th</sup></u> I continued my meetings with residents from 7 to 8 p.m. During the summer months when the Library is closed on weekends. I will be available Monday nights at that time in August. That concludes my report.

### **NEW BUSINESS:**

CONSENT AGENDA:	127.	Authorizing Award of Contract for Relining of a
		Portion of the Burr Place Sanitary Sewer Main to
		National Water Main Cleaning Co.

- 128. Construction Payment of Fees to State
- 129. Authorizing Award of Contract for 9/11 Fireman's Memorial Sidewalk Replacement to BelloGrande Contracting, LLC

On a motion by Councilman Lipari, seconded by Councilman DiPisa, and unanimously carried, the foregoing Consent Agenda Resolutions were approved (Copies attached).

APPOINTMENTS: Patrict Mucha from the Hasbrouck Heights Ambulance Squad to Fire Department Engine Company Two

### **APPOINTMENTS** (cont'd):

On a motion by Councilman Dingertopadre, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried, the foregoing Appointments were approved.

**RESIGNATIONS:** Michael Colaianni from Hasbrouck Heights Hook and Ladder Company One

On a motion by Councilman Dingertopadre, seconded by Councilwoman Buckman, and unanimously carried, the foregoing Resignation was accepted.

### **ORDINANCE(S) ON INTRODUCTION:** None

#### **ORDINANCE(S) ON PUBLIC HEARING:**

#### **ORDINANCE NO. 2267:**

Mayor Heck requested a motion to open the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2267 which was made by Councilman DiPisa, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried.

Carol Skiba, 191 Field Avenue, questioned Ordinance 2099, adopted August 9, 2005, 275-27of the Zoning Code entitled "Continuation of lawful nonconforming uses, structures and lots", saying it was amended to say "A use, structure or lot which is lawfully conducted or in existence prior to the effective date of any ordinance rendering such use, structure or lot nonconforming shall become a lawful nonconformity and may lawfully continue either in the manner as it was conducted or to the same extent as it existed prior to the adoption of that ordinance without any constraint whatsoever as hereinafter provided." She questioned if any nonconforming use of parking rental spots and lots throughout the borough continue to exist as they were prior to the introduction of this parking ordinance.

Mr. Chandless said this issue was raised by the Zoning committee. What business was conducted by the moratorium was the strict application of the ordinance that prohibited the rental of parking was lifted and did not then mean that those uses became lawful, in other words the ordinance was never amended to make whatever uses were undertaken under the moratorium lawful. The purpose of the moratorium is to test out proposed uses.

Mayor Heck said this ordinance also has to go before the Planning Board before it is adopted.

Joseph Audino, 116 Oldfield Avenue, which is across from the VFW. He said constantly there are cars parking overnight, all week long, a trailer was parked for a **ORDINANCE(S) ON PUBLIC HEARING (cont'd)**:

## ORDINANCE NO. 2267 (cont'd):

couple of months. Now he said you want to have strangers park there from 6 p.m. to 8 a.m. He was told they were those persons permitted by the VFW, the arrangements are private. What was being controlled was the size of the vehicles, length of time they can be there, they have to be removed during the daytime. He said a motorcycle club meeting is held (at the VFW) every Friday with motorcycles going up and down Field

Avenue until 2 a.m. Mayor Heck said this issue should be looked into further and asked Capt. Cronin look into this, who said if this is a function at the VFW and they are invited guests by the members of the VFW, there isn't much that can be done. When asked what their hours of operation were, it was thought they followed the ABC guidelines which were 1 or 2 a.m. on the weekends. He was told that the Building Inspector, before the VFW will be permitted after the first year, will make a determination that parking is available and designate parking spaces to limit it. Mr. Audino questioned 8 a.m. – would there be a patrol car there at 8:01 a.m. He was advised to call the Police if he observed cars. He was also told parking is limited to residents.

Judi Ferrari, 117 Baldwin Avenue, said that she has lived across from the Elks for 30 years. After 15 years the neighbors were no longer allowed to park in the lot. However, they have allowed various businesses to park their vehicles there. She has observed box trucks and landscaping vehicles and a tractor trailer which was there from 5 a.m. to 3 p.m. yesterday. She took pictures today and the day before which she presented and passed around of what she looks at. She was concerned that if cars would now be allowed to park, would she be looking at 15 cars. She was told the Zoning Enforcement Officer will make a determination of where the parking spaces will be. With the ordinance if the Elks has sufficient parking between 8 p.m. and 6 a.m. and if they want to rent it can only be residents and vehicles in accordance within the limitations of the ordinance.

There being no one else wishing to speak, Mayor Heck requested a motion to close the Public Hearing on this ordinance which was made by Councilman Lipari, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried.

Mayor Heck asked for a motion to Continue the Public Hearing on this ordinance until August 9, 2011 which was made by Councilman DiPisa, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried.

ORDINANCE NO. 2267 (cont'd):

BE IT RESOLVED that an Ordinance entitled: "AN ORDINANCE TO SUPPLEMENT ARTICLE VII ENTITLED "OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING" IN CHAPTER 275 ENTITLED "ZONING," OF THE CODE OF THE BOROUGH OF HASBROUCK HEIGHTS SO AS TO ALLOW OWNERS OF CERTAIN NON-RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY TO RENT UNUSED PARKING PLACES TO RESIDENTS OF THIS BOROUGH TO PARK CERTAIN MOTOR VEHICLES BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 6 P.M. AND 8 A.M." was continued on Public Hearing until a report is received from the Planning Board.

### **ORDINANCE NO. 2268:**

Mayor Heck requested a motion to open the public hearing on Ordinance No. 2268 which was made by Councilman Lipari, seconded by Councilman DiPisa, and unanimously carried

BE IT RESOLVED that an Ordinance entitled: "AN ORDINANCE TO SUPPLEMENT §133-30 ENTITLED "FEES UNDER CHAPTER 275, ZONING" OF CHAPTER 133 ENTITLED "FEES," OF THE CODE OF THE BOROUGH OF HASBROUCK HEIGHTS TO PROVIDE THE FEES FOR THE APPLICATION AND PERMIT FEE FOR THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT TO ALLOW THE RENTAL TO BOROUGH RESIDENTS OF CERTAIN PARKING FACILITIES PURSUANT TO §275-27 OF THIS CODE" was continued on Public Hearing until a report was received from the Planning Board.

There being no one wishing to speak, Mayor Heck requested a motion to close the Public Hearing on this ordinance which was made by Councilman DiPisa, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried.

Mayor Heck asked for a motion to Continue the Public Hearing on this ordinance until August 9, 2011 which was made by Councilman DiPisa, seconded by Councilman Gonzalez, and unanimously carried.

### **MISCELLANEOUS FROM PUBLIC:**

Mayor Heck asked for a motion to open the meeting to the public which was made by Councilman Gonzalez, seconded by Councilman DiPisa, and unanimously carried. Mayor Heck invited anyone from the public wishing to speak to please come forward.

There being none, Mayor Heck asked for a motion to close the public portion which was made by Councilman Gonzalez, seconded by Councilman DiPisa, and unanimously carried.

# ADJOURN:

At 9:04 p.m. Mayor Heck requested a motion to adjourn which was made by Councilman Lipari, seconded by Councilman DiPisa and unanimously carried.

I, ROSE MARIE SEES, Borough Clerk of the Borough of Hasbrouck Heights, do hereby certify that the foregoing Minutes are to the best of my knowledge a true account of the Regular Meeting held on July 26, 2011.

Rose Marie Sees, Borough Clerk